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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 5
77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD
CHICAGO, IL 60604-3590

MAY 2 6 2016

REPLY TO THE ATTENTION OF:

WW-16]

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURNRECEIPT REQUESTED

Robert Goad
' DMI Martin County Farms, LLC
846 West 116% Street

Carmel, IN 46032

Re:  Docket No: CWA-05-2016-0011

Dear Mr. Goad:

I have enclosed one copy of the fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order
(CAFO) in the resolution of the above case. It was filed  MAY 26 2016 | with the Regional
Hearing Clerk. :

The penalty amount agreed upon is $60,000, which is due within 30 days of the effective
date of the CAFO. A Certified or Cashier Check should be made payable to the “Treasurer,
United States of America,” at the following address:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

When submitting your check, please be sure that the Case Docket No. is included at
the bottom of your check.

There is now an Qnline Payment Option available through the Department of Treasury at
http:/fwww.pay.gov; which allows you to make payments using your credit card, checking, or
-saving account. Using the Search Public Forms field (left side of page) enter “SFO 1.1” to access
the EPA Miscellaneous Payments — Cincinnati Finance Center Form. Follow the instructions for
payment. '

Recycied/Recyclable e Printed with Vegetable Ol Based Inks on 100% Recycled Paper (100% Post-Consumer)



As indicated in your CAFQ, a copy of the check or electronic transfer must be sent to: -

LaDawn Whitehead

Regional Hearing Clerk (R-191)
U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

Gregory T. Carlson

Watershed and Wetlands Branch (WW-16J)
U.S. EPA, Region 5 ‘

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Tllinois 60604-3590

Leslie A. Kirby-Miles

Associate Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel (C-14J)
U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590

If you have any questions, please contact Gregory Carlson at (312) 886-0124.

Sincerely,

T e
f e
/f Peter Swenson, Chief
Watersheds and Wetlands Branch

T

Enclosure

Ce: Timothy A. Haley (w/ Enclosures)
Barnes & Thomburg, LLP
11 South Meridian St.
Indianapolis, IN 46204-3535

Andrew Roberts (w/ Enclosures)
US Army Corps of Engineers
Louisville District
CELRL-OPF-N, Rm 752

P.O. Box 59

Louisville, KY 40201-0059



Randy Braun (w/ Enclosures)

Indiana Department of Environmental Management
Office of Water Quality

100 N Senate Ave IGCN 1255

Indianapolis, IN 46204



"UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTI’I{) N: AGE?E’CY
REGION 5% i

)
IN THE MATTER OF: )
)}  Docket No.: CWA-05-2016-0011
DMI Martin County Farms, LLC, )} :
Carmel, Indiana. )
)
Respondent ) Consent Agreement and Final Order
) _
) - Pursuant to Section 309(g) of
}  the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C.
)y §131%(g).
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER
I. Preliminary Statement
1. The following agreement and order between the United States Environmental Protection

Agency (“U.S. EPA™) and DMI Martin County Farms, LLC, (“DMI” or “Respondent”) is
entered pursuant to the authority of section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act (CWA),

33 U.S.C. § 1319(g).
This is an administrative action for a penalty, commenced and concluded pursuant to section
309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3) of

the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil

Penalties. Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation.

Termination or Suspension of Permits, (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and
22.18(b)2) and (3). The U.S. EPA is the lead enforcement agency for this matter as defined

by the 1989 Memorandum of Agreement Between the Department of the Army and the



‘Environmental Protection Ageﬁcy Concerning Federal Enforcement for the Section 404

A __P'rolgram- of the Clean Water Act.

10.

. Prior to this action, U.S. EPA has consulted with the State of Indiana pursuant to section

309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §1319(g).

The Complainant is, by lawful delegation, the Director of thé Water Division, U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 (Complainant or U.S. EPA).

Respondent is DMI Martin County Farms, LLC, doing business at 8§45 West 116% Street,
Carmel, Indiana. Respondent is a-limited liability corporation cioing business in Indiana.
Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of a
complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by
the issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFQO). See 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b).

The parties agree that settling thi,;s action without the filing of a complaint or the adjudication
of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.

Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty specified in this CAFO and to the

terms of the CAFO.

H. Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

Respondent agrees to the terms of this order and further agrees not to contest the

jurisdictional allegations in this CAFQ. Respondent’s agreement to this CAFO is not an
admission of liability. Respondent retains the right to controvert EPA’s findings in any
subsequent proceedings, except in proceedings to implrc‘ament or enforce this CAFO.
Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F.R.

§ 22.15(c) and Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(2)(B), any right to

contest the allegations in this CAFQ, and its right to appeal this CAFO.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

IIE. Statutory and Regulatory Basis

Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of pollutants into
navigable waters except in compliance with, infer alia, a permit issued pursuant to Section
404 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1344,

Section 404 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, authorizes the Secretary of the Army, acting
through the Chief of Engineers, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), to issue permits for
the discharge of dredged or fill material into navigable waters.

Section 502(5) of the Act defines “person” as “an indiyidual, corporation, partnership,
association, State, municipality, commission, or political subdivision of a State, or any
interstate body.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5).

Section 502(12) of the Act defines “discharge of pollutants,” as, infer alia, “any addition of
any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12).

Section 502(6) of the Act defines “pollutant,” as “dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator
residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials,
radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipméﬁt, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and
industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into water.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6).
Section 502(14) of the Act defines “point source,” as “any discernible, confined and discrete
conveyance, including but not limited to any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well,
discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation, or vessel or |
other floating craft, from which pollutants are or may be discharged.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).
Section 502(7) of the Act defines “navigable waters” as “the waters of the United States,

including the territorial seas.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7).



18.

19

20.

21.

22,

23.

The regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 230.3(s) defines the term “waters of the United States™ to
include “all waters which are currently used, or were used in the past, or may be susceptible
to use in interstate or foreign commerce...[including] intrastate lakes, rivers, streams

(including intermittent streams). ..wetlands...the use, degradation, or destruction of which

-could affect interstate or foreign commerce including any such waters.. tributaries of [such]

waters...[and] wetlands adjacent to [all such] waters.”

. The regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 230.3(t) defines “wetlands” as “those areas that are inundated

or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency and duration Sufﬁcient to support, and
that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for
life in saturated soil conditions.”

Pursuant to section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g) the Administrator has authority
to assess civil penalties for violations of sections 1311 or 1344 of the Clean Water Act.

IV. Specific Factual Allegations

Respondent is a limited liability corporation llocated in and doing business in the State of
Indiana.

Respondent is a “person” within the meaning of Section 502(5) of the Act, 33 U.S.C.
§1362(5).

Respondent owns approximately 538 acres of contiguous property in Martin County, Indiana.
Within a 120 acre subset of the 538 acres, south of Bear Hill Road, in the east half of the
northeast quarter of Section 20 and in the northwest quarter of the northwest quarter of
Section 21, all in Township 4 North, Range 3 West, Mitcheltree Township, Martin County,

Indiana is the “Site,” with wetlands abutting Sulphur Creek.



24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29,

30

31.

Intermittently from approximately August 2010 — October 2010, Respondent caused the

discharge of dredge and fill material or both at the Site into approximately two (2) acres of

wetlands with earth moving and excavating machinery, which in turn caused the creation of

an approximately 16 acre impoundment of surface water.

The Site’s wetlands abutting Sulphur Creek drain to Sulphur Creek which flows into Indian

Creek which flows in the East Fork of the White River, a traditional navigable water 20 miles
above its mouth at the White River.

The Site’s wetlands refcrenced in Paragraphs 24 and 25 are "waters of the United States” as
defined at 40 C.F.R. § 230.3(s) and thus "navigable waters," as defined at section 502(7) of
the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1362(7).

The machinery referenced in Paragraph 24 constitute "point sources™ within the meaning of
the definition set forth in section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.5.C. § 1362(14).

The discharged material referenced in Paragraph 24 constitutes "pollutants" within the

meaning of the definitions set forth in section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6).
The placement of the material in the wetlands referenced in Pa;‘agraph 24 constitutes a
"discharge of pollutants" within the meaning of the definition set fqrth in section 502(12) of

the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12).

. Respondent did not have a permit issued under section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344,

for the discharge of pollutaﬁts referenced in Paragraph 24.
Each discharge of pollutants into navigable waters without a permit issued pursuant to
section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, constitutes a discrete violation of section 301(a)

of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).



32.

33

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Each day the discharged material remains in the wetlands without the required permit issued
pursuant to section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, constitutes a discrete violation of

section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S. C. § 1311.

V. General Stipulations

. Respondent and U.S. EPA entered into Tolling Agreements for the alleged violations

described above for the period commencing on August 1, 2015, and ending on June 1, 2016.
Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations of this Consent
Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2).

Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty of the CAFO pursuant to 40
C.F.R. § 22.18(b)(2).

Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations of this CAFO and its right to appeal
the final order.

This CAFO resolves only Respondent’s liability for federal civil penalties for the violations
alleged in the CAFO.

This CAFO does not affect the right of U.S. EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate
injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law.

This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with the CWA and other
applkicable fédera}, state and local, laws and regulations.

This CAFO is a “final order” for purposes of 40 C.F.R. §22.31 and the EPA’s Clean Water
Act Section 404 Settlement Penaltsr Policy (Dec. 2001).

The terms of this CAFO bind U.S. EPA and Respondent and their successors and assigns.
Each person signing this CAFO certifies he or she has the authority to sign this CAFO for the

party he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms.



43, Each party agrees to bear its own costs and fees, including attorney fees, for this action.

44, This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

45, Before the Regional Administrator signs this CAFO, it shall be subject to the _requirements of
Section 309(g)(4) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §1319(g)(4).

46. The effective date of this CAFO is the date EPA files it with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

VI. Civil Penalties

47. Respoﬁdent agrees to pay a civil penalty of $60,000 within 30 days of the effective date of
this CAFO. Respondent agrees to pay the penalty by sending a cashier’s or certified check,

payable to the order of the U.S. Treasury:

FOR CHECKS SENT BY REGULAR U.S. POSTAL SERVICE
MAIL: :

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 970977
St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000

FOR CHECKS SENT BY EXPRESS MAIL:
U.S. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077

U.S. EPA Fines and Penalties

1005 Convention Plaza

Mail Station STL-MO-C2GI.

St. Louis, MO 63101

48. Respondent must include with its cashier’s or certified check a transmittal letter stating the
name of this action, Respondent’s complete address, the Docket No. of this action and the
Billing Document No. of this action. Respondent must send copies of each check and
transmittal letter to:

LaDawn Whitehead
Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
77 West Jackson Boulevard (E-19])



Chicago, lllinois 60604

Gregory Carlson (WW-16J)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinois 60604

Leslie Kirby-Miles

Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
77 West Jackson Boulevard (C-147)
Chicago, Illinois 60604

49, This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

50. If Respondent fails to timely pay the civil penalty, Complainant may bring an action to

51

collect any unpaid portion of the penalty with interest, handling charges, nonpayment

penalties and Complainant’s enforcement expenses for the collection action.

. Interest will accrue on any amount overdue from the date the payment was due at arate

established pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717. Respondent must pay a $15.00 handling charge
each month that any portion of the penalty due is more than 30 days past due. U.S. EPA will

assess a six percent (6%) per year penalty on any principal amount not paid timely pursuant

to this CATFO.



SIGNATORIES

Fach undersigned representative of a party to this Consent Agreement and Final Order
certifies that he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this

Consent Agreement and Final Order and to bind legally such party to this document.



In the Matter of: DME Martin County Farms, LLC

Docket No. CWA-05-2016-0011
Consent Agreement and Final Order

RESPONDENT ,
DMI Martin County Farms, LLC
Carmel, Indiana '

Date_Marchiy, 20l %\/j—/

Robert Goad, Managing Partner
DMI Martin County Farms, LLC

10 7 .



COMPLAINANT

Water Division

Region 5

United States Environmental Protection Agency

, ‘ 1
Date: 71‘,&%‘”?* i 225 20 s 5“%{,@/ //5 WZ]&[’ p—
/ - Tinka G. Hyde
Director, Water D1v131on

11
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In the Matter of: DMI Martin County Farms, LLC

Docket No. cwa-05-2016-0011
Consent Agreement and Final Order

'FINAL ORDER
This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become effective
immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes this

proceeding pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §22.18 and 22.31. IT IS SO ORDERED.

Date 4/L3// C 7 %Ml/& éq/L

Robert Kaplan

Acting Regional Admnustrator

Region 5

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Hlinois 60604

12



In the matter of: ~ DMI Martin County Farms, LLC g
Carmel, IN }
}

U8 ENVIRONKENTA

Y PROTECT)
Docket Number:  CWA-05-2016-0011 ‘x, VIECTO AceNeY /

‘» f‘f"‘é: Gion & % ﬂ/é
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE ' e

I certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Counsent Agreement and Final
Order, which was filed on | MAY 2 6 2016 1, this day in the following
manner to the addressees:

Copy by certified mail return-receipt requested:

Robert Goad

DMI Martin County Farms, LLC
846 West 116" Street

Carmel, IN 46032

Copy by e-mail 1o
Complainant: Leslie A. Kirby-Miles
Kirby-miles.leslie(@epa.cov

Gregory T. Carlson
carlson.gregory(@epa.gov

Copy by e-mail to .
Regional Judicial Officer: Ann Coyle
covle.ann@epa.cov

Dated: ! ji v}»’ifi {2 /ipfm Loy }{G’ , f% S %J; f’”’”f A
y M LaDawn Whitehead
Regidnal Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5

o A
CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NUMBER(S): ?ﬁ 0
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